
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, January 7, 2026 | Page 1 of 1

NEWTON FALLS  CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, January 7, 2026; 6:00 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS
612 WEST BROAD STREET

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS CITY ADMINISTRATION

Ward 1 Brian Kropp City Manager Jamie Vernaccini

Ward 2 Brian Axiotis Law Director Jeff Limbian
Ward 3 VACANT Finance Director Pamela Hileman
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener Clerk of Council Michael Acomb
At- Large Julie Stimpert Police Chief John Barco

Mayor David Hanson

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer

III. Roll Call
IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda
V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants

Chief Williamson – NFJFD Chief – Presentation and Donation of AED
VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only)

VII. Reports
a. Mayor
b. Council Members
c. Law Director
d. City Manager

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes
Regular Meeting Minutes December 17 , 2025

IX. Public Hearings
X. Unfinished Business

XI. New Business
Motion Sponsors: Axiotis, Stimpert
A Motion to appoint Patricia Benetis to the Newton Falls Planning and Zoning Commission for 
the term expiring December 31, 2027.

Motion Sponsors: Axiotis, Stimpert
A Motion to appoint Zachary Svette to the Newton Falls Planning and Zoning Commission for the 
term expiring December 31, 2029.

XII. Public Comments
XIII. Closing Remarks

a. Mayor
b. Council Members
c. Law Director
d. City Manager

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary)
XV. Adjournment



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, December 17, 2025 | Page 1 of 1 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, December 17, 2025; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  City Manager Jamie Vernaccini 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Robert Burke  Finance Director Pamela Hileman 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert  Police Chief John Barco 
Mayor David Hanson    

 
I. Call to Order 

Ms. Stimpert called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 

III. Roll Call 
Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Stimpert, 
Councilperson Burke, Councilperson Rufener. 
Council Absent: Mayor Hanson. 
Staff Present: City Manager Vernaccini, Clerk Acomb. 
Staff Absent: Law Director Limbian, Chief Barco, Finance Director Hileman 

IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to add a motion to reappoint Bob Burke to the open seat on 
Council representing Ward 3. Second by Mr. Rufener. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The motion was added to New Business.  

V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 
Ken Day – City of Hubbard, OH and 12 Point Consulting 
Mr. Day explained that his company is very familiar with the water plant. He explained 
that participating in a litigation regarding PFAS is something that they are assisting 
communities with. They are encouraging Council to participate in the litigation which 
will provide relief to communities who will need to perform treatment to remove PFAS. 
The litigation should result in the formation of “kitty” from which communities who have 
been cited, can access funds for future treatment. Participation is “no cost” to the Village. 
This is not an uncommon problem, and the Village should try to access any money that 
can help since they have been cited for PFAS being present in the water supply. Cody 
Zeleny reiterated his support for this proposed action to Council. Mr. Rufener stated that 
many of his questions have already been answered and he supports the action. He 
commented that the testing is on the intake. He thanked everyone for their 
communications with him. 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
None. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, December 17, 2025 | Page 2 of 1 
 

VII. Reports 
a. Council Members 

i. Ward 1 – No report. 
ii. Ward 2 – A Planning and Zoning meeting was held on December 10 and 

several variances were approved for the new Circle K store. There is now 
only one member of the Commission. There are now two applicants to be 
discussed at the next meeting. 

iii. Ward 3 – No report.  
iv. Ward 4 – No report. 
v. At-Large – No report. 

b. City Manager – She read from a prepared report. Enclosed. 
c. Law Director – No report. 

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Mayor Hanson asked for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes December 3, 
2025. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Second by Ms. Benetis. 

 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The minutes were approved. 

IX. Public Hearings 
X. Unfinished Business 

XI. New Business 
RESOLUTION 15-2025    Sponsors: Axiotis, Rufener 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER IN TO 
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE LAW FIRM OF GROSSMAN & KELLY LLP AND ITS 
PARTNERS TO ASSIST IN PARTICIPATING IN THE NATIONAL PFAS WATER 
SETTLEMENT AND IN PROSECUTING CLAIMS FOR WATER CONTAMINATION, 
INCLUDING, 1,4-DIOXANE, MICROPLASTICS AND OTHER WATER POLLUTANTS. 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only and asked for a motion to pass the 
resolution. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Second by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Axiotis stated that he was aware of the PFAS issue and recognizes them as 
harmful. It’s a zero cost to the Village; but allows us to access money to offset the 
remedies to a problem the Village did not cause. Mr. Rufener spoke in support of 
the resolution reiterating no cost to the Village; but stand to gain a lot of money 
to assist in treatment. The EPA will require treatment and this is a proactive 
action to take to assist with future expenditures. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The resolution passed 5-0. 
 
MOTION 
A motion to reappoint Bob Burke to the open seat on Council representing Ward 3. 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to pass the motion. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Second by 
Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Axiotis stated that Mr. Burke has served for a year and there are no other 
applicants. He urged engagement from Ward 3 and stated preference to have an 
elected member over an appointed member. Mr. Rufener stated the same 
sentiments and supports Mr. Burke. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. 

XII. Public Comments  
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, December 17, 2025 | Page 3 of 1 
 

The agenda was not posted online, and she did not receive it. She encouraged Mr. Burke 
to run for the seat in 2026. She also said that public records are not being handled in a 
timely manner. She also stated that the police department has a problem in that they 
have hired officers that were fired from other communities. She spoke against the hiring 
of a particular officer from Girard. She presented to the Clerk a packet of public records 
regarding current Newton Falls Police Officers. 

XIII. Closing Remarks 
a. Council Members 

i. Ward 1 – She thanked everyone and stated belief that this council works 
well together. She hopes it will continue. She looks forward to seeing this 
Council continue to do good work.  

ii. Ward 2 – He stated appreciation for the current members of Council and 
encouraged everyone to get involved and support the Village. 

iii. Ward 3 – He wished everyone a good holiday season.  
iv. Ward 4 – He thanked staff and administration for their hard work to get 

the Village moving forward with cooperation.  
v. At-Large – She thanked Ms. Benetis for her service. She thanked Mr. 

Burke for his efforts and willingness to continue. 
b. City Manager – no remarks. 

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
MOTION 
A Motion to enter into executive session to consider the appointment, employment, 
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion or compensation of a public employee or 
official and imminent legal matter.  
Moved by Mr. Rufener.  Second by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The executive session began at 6:24 pm.  
 
M. Rufener made a motion to adjourn the executive session and resume the regular 
session. Second by Mr. Axiotis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The executive session ended and regular session 
resumed at 7:57 pm.  

XV. Adjournment 
Mr. Axiotis made a motion to adjourn the regular meeting. Second by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Burke-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:57 pm.  
 
 

APPROVED:            
        _________________________________________ 
                                            David Hanson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 














































